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BRE R AR 7 121,573 63,802
e —fEEE AR 2 BE 18 7 L
FEMA 6 (8,676) (10,495)
RSN 6 (705) =
BUH KRR 2 BB SR E 6 (827) 5
BERAARN 2 KBS R R BT E R 6 (728) (9,699)
Yz - WERRETE 8 1,001,293 1,053,492
FREEEFRE 8 23,803 18,016
HEME - WEREBEE &

ERBREERSE, (W) FE 8 (525,446) 6,473
RERE 16 52,488 =
Yz - BB RERERE 14 285,401 =
FEUE 5 FRIBRIE, CRlfE 2 ) 8 1,685 (1,602)
ey, (BB R E SHE 8 (2,523) 4,976
FERE(BEDR)FE 8 108,229 (19,480)
HERERL A 4(a) (69,429) =
TTESBMIANTFEEBE(K=)FH8E 8 45,885 (37,488)
VA B e 45 5 BB AR B 2 1(a) 2,276 5,035

1,272,813 1,273,225
FERLD () 116,871 (239,660)
FEWE SR BR AL,/ (3Ehn) 1,599,469 (215,765)
TERRIR - ke REMmEYEIER D 149,301 15,613
PTESMIACE (40,725) 34,038
ENESRIBERERRD (433,985) (98,015)
H b A 5108 & B+ B g A0, (R ) (150,328) 207,844
LEEMERS 2,513,416 977,280
B BEAEE (107,957) (178,760)
PR AT TR 1,604 15,759
EREINTIBEL (7,132) (2,966)
BRENR (20,456) (38,867)
= el 8,676 10,495
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ENEFLEENHESTCARERMR R FRHEBERBRER - XA BIMFEMMiE B Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

MEARER
AARMEBKHBRAFBOT :

BRTREARG/
MR/ HRRERDS HRRE  ADREGREER
Best Alliance Holding Inc. A AEREE(RERLE 52,600,00057 100% RERR
&))/mERA(TZRE)) LiEk
AERRERAT BT/ HERE 49,777 41957 100% RERK
LiEk
FMEREEEN)BRL T BE 52,500,005 100% HEREELS
ENARENRABRAF B 148 500,000 70 100% 4EREERT
EE(RI)ENREERAR" mE 101,000,000£7 100% HEREELS
ZRERERAE EET/MERE 1,000,000£7 100% HEEZRAEIH
gk
HURABRAR MERE 105,000,0008 4 % 100%  EEESRREEME
Liak
ERRERRAA B 18T 100% RE-RABRIERE
LEk
Mindforce Holdings Limited([ Mindforce ) ABRLEE/ERE 75,101,000 T 1% RERR
Lk
EUANRE(RWL)ARARK B 25,000,000 %  EERREER
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RZE-—F+-fA=1+—1:
XA 4,981,612 9,957 10,129,750 1,715,443 14,083 806,501 17,657,346
ZEMERAE (2,152,384) (3,686)  (5,849,136)  (1,472,923) (9,355) - (9,487,484)
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B X 32 A BT BB A R BEEE AR Y BRI T 0 IR R BB HH B R M AR AT TR R AR AR B U TE IR e iR B IR ERA IR ©

AR IR R B B W -
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18. R—EBEQANRE

DMEEEFE

B R

—E-—f£+-fF=+-H

12,654

A UNCIES ) Ul

o RiReHR

GV E 5

Leading Profit Holding Limited

KRS
FRRREANM

49%

AEERBERRNRERBEBARFEZEMBRRFENRARS

TRIVRAE B I I E R B E AR E A RNMBEER

eal sl

T

MR EREERE

19. FE

224,847
677,584
1,081,499
209,765

2,193,695
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e Wy e S

20.

111

P B 5 ;K

JEUE F 5108 2,426,112 4,300,833
A (5,166) (3,481)
2,420,946 4,297,352

AEBEFETEER RN TFEOREI120K - BRESHFBNTHE - AREY B ZFEHRTEEMER
mE M EERRS o

RFERR - AEEREZ AR RERREFEAENERKEZFRRESTOT

3 AW 1,295,835 2,780,363
4Z61E A 1,064,992 1,487,320
72121 A 60,119 29,669

2,420,946 4,297,352

FEWE 53 RR B E IR R B E BRI T

FH) 3,481 5,083
SRUE ORE @) (F13E8) 1,685 (1,602)
R 5,166 3,481

RZZ-_Z_H+-A=+—8  BEBEENHEAR7E 1218 A0 RKE S RIBE I -

RZZF-_—F+-A=1+—8  BERERLEBRIZ6(EA N RIE SRR DR
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B 7% R 2% M aE

—E--—F+-fA=+—H

20. BWEZREGE)
REERE B RERBEERETREST - UAERREEEE - BEXDERAFRUBERANZE
BEFBENDEAMNBIREME - ZtERRIAX SR - ERRBEKNBREERASNERBEESE
BRI RARREBEGHTRANAERAEER - —RME - BREZRSFERAREB —FRME - BTX
HITITIERR o

UTEIIERASBERKE SRR - ERBEERENEERRNER

R-B_—_#+-A=+-—H

B

1£318A 4AZ618A 7E12f8A

FEHEEEEX 0.05% 0.02% 6.23% 44.92% 0.21%
EEmaE(FET) 1,832,492 565,770 21,642 6,208 2,426,112
FEHEEEE(TET) 916 113 1,348 2,789 5,166

RZE=—F+=-A=+—H

760 2

1Z231E A VEXNEDS 72128 A

JEHEEEER 0.06% 0.02% 7.19% 0% 0.08%
EEmaE(TET) 3,486,466 796,583 17,105 679 4,300,833
FEHEEEE(TET) 2,092 159 1,230 = 3,481
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21. ENFKIE - REREMEWRRE

FES OB 59,345 60,606
e R H AR GIA 134,345 303,444
193,690 364,050

Bt A LSRN S RS E BT Y ER S NANSENRUGIAER - RREEBRE2EAKEA
EEBRLRRBEBRABRL RIA MG - BRIEXSHERE - URREEIRAERE TR MR RTEA (20
BA) RE - —_F+_HA=t+—"RR-_ZE_—F+ A=+ BNRAGEERTEHRMTEN -

22. BEEARAVEFAEMZARANRERE

EEABRAFEFAHMZERANRERE
BN ETIRARE - BRATEHEERE AR AR 13,489 18,879

AR ARER SRR EBRNREMEE - M DRRARE S A BHEE AR A FEFARMBE2EEA -

HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE AEBEEFARAFTEF A AHEMB2EAR AR ERLEES
5,429,000/ 7T (Z 2= —4F : 5,460,000/ T) @ WREHMEEU ST T LARER -

BE_Z-__F+-_A=1T—"HLHFE  ARESABERZER QWA ET050008T( =T =—%F:
) o

SERA - EEARDTEHALBRERANBAREBATRRBERRE+EANER - At - &
BASEREANFRRRNIFRDAE -

R BHRRELER - AREH EHRARE 2 HIHEELR15,772,000/87T °
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23.

24.

B R AR MY RE

SeERlens el Sl B

ReERReFEYECERARZRHBTER

Be MIRTTH S - BIERA R TE3E A/ ESFER 1,809,456 923,344
B BRI M S2PR B SR T A B (102,659) (74,744)
ReEMREFEY 1,706,797 848,600

ARE(TAREDRTFBEREA T ERALAER LB HTPBRRMES S BEBTERLRAORR
ERERBEFMAAARABECELRERBNTZIETES  SEFELNEETESRARTLR - B
WEMARZFRAARESFERBRA LR KEFRRHIOHRS KRS EEWL A397,824,0008 (=T =—
£ : 282,548,000/ 7T) °

RITBESREBEAFRITEFMNFZIDNERDANE - ERERFHPRS—RE=EA - BFAEKENHH

R EFRME » WABREHEHRERFRA RREOFAE - RITERMEEREFREFNOBLEENLE
BIEMRIFRIIRTT ©

RIEHEZFRBERE
R-Z-—F+-A=+—8 ' BEEHEA26210,0008THETRHAKS - RRREEEAEVE - BE

REEME1O)BREBEHEZERPEE - R-F-—F+-A=+—8 ' AHLERSEENERD
EfTH - BEFRAEEEE TR BRE R+ AR5 -
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e Wy e S

25. ENEZRERRR
FETESHUBTHFIE - B—RENGOE120KEH -

RBEHAR - AEEDIRERAPLEERHFAENENESREARZBREATAOT -

3B AR 532,780 1,093,965
4Z61E A 254,025 215,514
7E21218 A 29,030 14,361
BiE1E 6,768 9,205

822,603 1,333,045

26. HENRERETER

B A (FiFEE29) 858 898
BHBE 53,851 32,483
H th & < FRIB 756,212 695,853
TR EERA - 726,350
EEtER 634,596 881,417

1,445,517 2,337,001

' BHAREERFHERMAENTEETOR -

R-Z-—F—A—H AKBEHR39,436,0008TT - R-_Z-—F  GHEEENCCZE-_—F : BP)TBERNFE
FEEEDT AR PRI TREFIEN( T = —F B -

# HA R FIRTEFIE -
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27.

28.

8155 4R % T

—E--—F+-fA=+—H

TTESRMTA

RHINE G A = 1,676 3,680 216

NEBFIV ZAERAINESL » LBIREASZNINERBIFE - ZSRINESHNTIFETHARETER -
BEBRBRRATESE REBE_E-—F+-_A=1+—HBI-FE  FEHEEITETANA T EEHT
%845,885,000/8 T (—ZT = —4F : 37,488,000/ T) N BRRAHIBR(ZE-_—F : 5t A) °

FFEHRITEE
BEERF= =SS
(%) (%)
B
REEX 6.10 2023 274,842 1.32 2022 137,245
HAIRITER 0.56-7.51 2023 2,773,902 0.38-2.72 2022 3,417,354
3,048,744 3,554,599
EFRE
IREER 1.32 2024-2025 961,947 1.32 2023-2025 1,235,203
HMIRITER 1.32-1.68 2024-2027 32,437 1.13-1.26 2023-2027 62,852
994,384 1,298,055
4,043,128 4,852,654
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28. FTEBITEE#E)
B -
—FR 3,048,744 3,554,599
F—F 441,052 313,204
F-ERF(BEEREMTE) 553,332 984,061
BiERF - 790
4,043,128 4,852,654
Hiet -
(a REBETFRITEZTIATIIER EAER
(i) RMER  AEERFERBE T L RIEFER - BREFEH20,223,0008 (=T =—4F : 22,227,000/
T &
(ii) RIBERR - NRARIREHRS42,931,266,0008 L (ZF=—4F : 3,190,318,000/ 7T ) F R aHELR ©
(b) ANE [ BRI {E 53,728,254,000 7T ( Z 2 = —4F : 4,430,816,000/87T) ~ 20,744,000/ 7T ( —ZZF = —4F : 27,057,000/67T)
294,130,000 L (=T =—4F : 394,781,0008 L) ZIRITERDRIAET([ZET])  Fa((FHeak ) RARK AE
fi o
29. EZEWA

B UK BE & B TS BT A B B B RO U A (i) 43,483 48,227

mBEo (5E26) (858) (898)

EMENER S 42,625 47,329
B3

(i) BERABREENGBEAERZINETHERRRKBEEEMSOBITHE
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SeERlens el Sl B

30. KA
igvi)

R
2,000,000,0008% & A% EI{E0. 178 7L B0 200,000 200,000

BEIT MR
1,200,008,4450% ( —ZF ——%F : 1,200,008,445}%)
FIREEO.1B TR MD 120,001 120,001

31. RPBRENETE
(a) HBRESTE
AATR ST BAAES2I([518]])  BMERAYAEERNELIELERNABR2RERHBEHR
B3 - BN A ARSEEARANRNES(AEBYIERTES) A£EHMES - AEEEYK
RISILER - AEEES  AASEIRERE BESHEARTSEMAL AEERERAEEDE
MASEERDEK AL AN EBNRERKSELERN2EE -

B HERIZRT B AR B RITEBRER B TER T FERAR AR D HITRMDEZ30%  REM
REAPEASEAER2EEREFIERBREMAERTORODERSHE - UARFTREH
TEM1% AR - BITREBEZ EROBERASBRRAERRAS L1E

MARNFES « EBITHRAE « TEWRABES 2 EABHEARDERE - BLEBYIFRTES
o BN REMNREAABRRRARR T EREXBIIEATEST R HENEMBHBAR L ER
& MATE R BEARA R TENEZEITRMG0.1% KA E(REARBRGHEL B RN ET
& )#8#5,000,0008 7T + AIZEAELRRERR RS L& o

ERATRERBREDHEA21AR - SAXMEBETHRBAREZARLBRENER - IR

HERENTENRESET - TEHTHREBEEES ARG - YR ERNR HBERE B g+
FEABR o
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31. BR{EOBmEMETE(2)
(a) BRESTE(E

BRENTEEHESETE @ ETFEROEERZMEBRERARAR RN NERER LA H
MTHE » RINBERRLERANAEAKZEEERZAEERERMAIARBROHFHRTE &

(i) A2 A EE B RS
FEREY N T RB AR SN BERAGRE 2R -

FR - ARFRERBZ R B SGEHEBRE - TEBRELSER -

T 5 et BITR TR A AR TT 8 B RE AR -

—E-CF ==
T 91T EE BREHE MEFHITEE fEA s B
BRAET BFRETT
Rn—HA—H 1.48 33,512,000 1.48 35,630,000
B84 1.48 (1,536,000) 1.48 (2,118,000)
Rnt+=-—A=+—~” 1.48 31,976,000 1.48 33,512,000
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31. R{WmENETEI(2)
(a) HBRESTEI(Z)
RARAE HA SR 4 SR 77155 B AR A W01 T /B AT A A T

184,400 1.48 2018511878 Z202458H31H
534,400 1.48 2019511878 %202458H31H
538,400 1.48 2020511 87H%E202458H31H
15,360,400 1.48 2021511878 %202458H31H
15,358,400 1.48 2022511878 %E202458H31H
31,976,000
—_E- %
EREEE
184,400 1.48 2018511 A7H 2202498 A31H
534,400 1.48 201911 A7H 2202498 A31H
538,400 1.48 2020511 7B 2202498 A31H
16,128,400 1.48 202111 A7H 2202458 A31H
16,126,400 1.48 2022511 7B 2202458 A31H
33,512,000

* BRENTTEENEHBESA T  REMARARRATENESMREE -

HE_Z_—_F+_-_A=-1+—HLFE  AEERBAFERE MR ZEREEABRERS A
2,276,000 70( =& = —4 : 5,035,000/87T) °

RmEHRR - RABREFTBIPEH 31,976,000 M ARTTEBRE - HARAE B HTRO L

2.7% ° RIBAQNRIREHNEAREE  28ITHEH T BREGEREEINETT31,976,000 A2 7] L@
% K B 7R 3, 198,0007%8 7T A M A% 15 34 B 44,127,000 70 (F1F 3817 SR ) ©
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31.

32.

33.

MR A0 EREN T & (&)

(b) KUERETE
B-T—tFRAATNBE BBESHERMMND R 8I([ D ZEEE]) EEZBENAOE
E/&ﬁﬁb%$%@i*ﬁ)}%§@ﬁﬁjEJfJ(Z/\ﬁT%/,\% AEERSEERTER  YRERSR/A
SESELENERMNEER + ROVREISBEAT NE - MEEAEEE - FER - RBROZEB

HIRESERE -

R-FE-—_F+-_A=+—0 - BROZEMFET AARBRITEXBERAAFHEEH
354,345,774 (=T = —4F : 354,345,774%) °

(A
REFFERAFEAKERENCBREMAESFE @ ARMBRRFMSTANGARSEH X -

BREAFEFEEZHFEZENBLR
BABARFEN S 2 AR AIMBARFITEHIIWT

ISR A BRER DL

ErRENBAR([ETEE]) 40.72% 40.72%
Mindforce 2 E Bt B A 7] ([ Mindforce 2 & | ) 29% 29%

DT IFEHIE S 2 AFEEE
FErEE (29,297) (81,837)
Mindforcef£ & (44,958) (33,844)

RiE B IR bl s 2 RETHEER

ErEE 1,289,833 1,486,263
Mindforces & 61,775 120,810
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33. BREEAKEHNERZFZENBLT @
TRIR LB EEHBARZHHENRE - RS2 SBDEALABRBNSE

#xEE  MindforcefEE

FHxT FH T

= == i

WA 2,785,604 827,851

BH S (2,857,552) (982,879)
REZEE (71,948) (155,028)
ANEEREMAS 25 (490,056) (202,932)
mENEE 2,949,123 514,759

EMBEE 2,530,650 654,880

mEEE (2,290,913) (799,668)
ERBEE (31,505) (156,424)
EEEBIREREFHE 600,215 19,263

WEESE/ (FTA)REREFE 4,280 (10,928)
MEEEBE(FTR)REREFE (362,597) 43,150

Re KR EEBYILINFEE 241,898 51,485

ELEHE Mindforcef &
FHET FHET

B —F
WA 3,724,365 1,403,490
FelE g (3,925,339) (1,520,196)
AFEEHE (200,974) (116,706)
REEEEML A (61,617) (102,359)
mENEE 3,728,105 887,242
ERBEE 2,544,293 779,271
REEE (2,606,793) (1,093,667)
ERBEE (25,857) (156,368)
KBRS,/ (FTR)REREF5E (34,723) 329,185
REEHFARSREFE (352,266) (20,397)
BMEEEFE(FTR)REREFE 351,715 (307,061)
We MBS SEMILN R ) FHE (35,274) 1,727
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3. BERERERMET
(a) FEFEREXRH

i A '$§%@?ﬁﬂi"fiﬂﬂ&%¥(:f_—$ MERAB)EELHNEREEENHEEAR

BFEIR £ 1 A0 5l A300,407,0008 (=&
—% 1 953,000/87T) °

—4F : 953,000/ 7T ) }2300,407,000/ T ( ZFE =

(i) FA - RRBMEE)THR - AEBEFEFREAMHEKRAT26,350,0008TT(R_F=—%F
ToAZ+T Bt ARMENFI LB ER) - R AREERKAGE9,429,0008 T M HEE T

Y -~ R MRETEE MEREEEMESNMENRA656,921,0008 7T °

(b) BMEEZDELZEEEH

T2 =

HEAE STEBITHEE

FET FHBxT

N-TBE-—F—HF—H 1,997 4,852,654
RMERSREEDH (32,257) (736,231)
MHEE 300,407 =
F AR RIZFH S 1,020 =
DEAEER S RNENTE (1,020) -
HNPE B B (3,870) (73,295)
R-BE-_—_F+-_A=+—H 266,277 4,043,128

=B —%F

HERE

SRRITEE

TET

TAT

R-ZZE-Z—F—H—H 3,335 4,492,647
RERSREF (2,316) 339,055
g 953 -
FRHERHRILF S 103 —
DEELEESRNENFE (103) -
HINE & & 25 20,952
RZZE——F+=A=+—H 1,997 4,852,654

123 ERERZBREMRAT  F# 2022



 BE®mEWE

—E-—&#+-A=+—8

34, mEBEERERKZE &)
() HENBRELRE
HABSREZNRERSRLAEENT

& EE 4,163 3,668
EREEE S 32,257 2,316
36,420 5,984

35. SHAEE
RIBEHR - NEELETAEAKAEE -

36. EifE
AEBRBERRZ EARAENT

DETABE R B
g5 11,242 236,872
RN N 82,162 220,588
S+ = 337,061
48 AR 93,404 794,521
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37. BEALXRS
(a) BRUSHBBRREMTIMFLRNRZIN FEEREFAZBEHBEATETIIRS :

AT IA LA EERNK -

BREA At (i) 146 26
KR4 (i) 60 26
RIERDBRAR ([REL) (iii) 308 148
MEBLZ L (iv) 63 =
FRAEEERE :
B EAS A (i) = 121
KR4 (i) - 35
ARAE (iii) = 159
MEBLZ L (iv) = 63
HEaBEMNFEMAX
BIEAN 2+ (i) — 2
KR A (i) = 1
KA (iii) = 3
MWEBRZ L (iv) = 1
BisE :

(i) BRXLTBARREEBYERENLE - BEREFBESHHENKEXEE BE2_T_—_F+-_A=
T—HILSFE  ARBEESEXLTETVEREERE - N - —F+_A=t—AK-_ZT-_—F+-F=
TR BERIERAREENEEEE

(ii) EKREERBAAREEBYERENRE T - BEDREFBE I HENKEXEE BE2_T_—_F+-_A=
T—HILFE  ARBEESKFEEALETVEREERE - N - Z-—F+-_A=+—AK-_ZT-_—F+-F=
TR BERIERAREENEEEE

(iy ~— BRAXLZELREKELEEHR/RENESE - MEBR L (BRARREZTHBY B RENER)  BREXLEREKE
FEORRENER - BEDREBEEEZIAHENREXREE - BE-Z-—"F+-_A=1+—HILFE - £5E
HERREVERPHERRE KRB —F+-_A=+—HKZZ-—F+-A=+—H  HERIERREE
LHEE&E -

vy MEBZEIRARREFLIELEENESE - HeDRBEEEZTBENREREE - BE-"T-_—F+-A=

T—HLEEE  ARBEEMAEBELZIETVEREERRE - N T —F+_A=+—AK_F_—F+-_F=
T—R  BIERRACAREERBERAE -

FEEA TR S MER FTRAIFVIAEMERC BERXGAFEBERS ©
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37. BEAXLRZ %)
(b) FAEEXEEBAENMS(TEEESHE):

HHEEEF 9,136 12,068
& 8 &0 IWENFE X 784 1,764
MEZEEABNENE 2% 9,920 13,832

EEMEE S BINYBRERMEEI °

38. BEAETHNERMIA
RBEDR - ZLMTAERINEEENT -

:'_;,ﬁ: -
THREE
EEARLAFE
DBSERATE sTAHMEE
HNEMEE WANKRERE
FH T FH T
EE AR AFEF AR MEEmBRANBRARRE = 13,489 13,489
U E 538 2,420,946 = 2,420,946
BFFATEMNIE - e MEMBUGENEREE 91,381 = 91,381
B RS R HIRI T4 5 102,659 = 102,659
BeMReEEY 1,706,797 = 1,706,797
4,321,783 13,489 4,335,272
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38.

RERETHNEMIAEE)
RIBEHR - SeMTEEMETENT (&)

ZEHF(E)
TEHEE
BAFEFA
BENEm RBHERAYER
EE—BEESE WERER
FHExT FHExT
ENESHIEREE = 822,603 822,603
Bt AHRMENZEEAEANCREE = 790,854 790,854
PTAESRIT A 1,676 = 1,676
STRIRITEE = 4,043,128 4,043,128
HEEE = 266,277 266,277
1,676 5,922,862 5,924,538

VA PR A SHE

THETT

BEREAHESARMEZEBA

BAFERA
BT R
BE—RHIHEE

T

HER/RAFE
AtARMZE
WA AR E

TR

RIAR A E - = 18,879 18,879
R E 5508 4,297,352 — — 4,297,352
Bt ABMNKIE - e REAMmEK

HENCREE 118,847 = = 118,847
PTESRT A — 3,680 — 3,680
EEARZRHIRITLEH 74,744 = = 74,744
ReEMREEZEEY 848,600 = = 848,600

5,339,543 3,680 18,879 5,362,102
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38. REAESNEMITA A
REEHR - SSRMTARRNEAENT : (4)

B —F(E)
THEEE
BN ERTA
BafEa REHEEATR
BE—REEE MemaE
F&TT FHET
ENESFIERREE = 1,333,045 1,333,045
EifAEMENREETEANEREE = 711,385 711,385
PTAESRIT A 216 = 216
TRIRITEER = 4,852,654 4,852,654
HEAE = 1,997 1,997
216 6,899,081 6,899,297

39. ERMTAAFERAFEER
AEELRTA(TEAZSRAERATEARIEEE) ZRAERATENT |

ERMEE
EEARAFEFAEMEERW AL

A E

BN ETRRAKRE - R AFE 13,489 18,879 13,489 18,879
PTESEIA = 3,680 = 3,680

13,489 22,559 13,489 22,559

sRER
PTAESRIA 1,676 216 1,676 216
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39.

129

EMTAAFERQIVFEERE)
EEECHEEREEZA - Bt ABNRIEA  REREMBREFENSREE CEBRIRFRITE
# B MREEEY  BNEZFELRE  SHAEMENFENRESERNSRAENRBRITE
EZRBBNZATEEREZEEEEAEE - RASZETAOREHMATE -

AEBUBHPIRAMBRERE - AREFSRIAQATEFAENBREER - MBHFIERRTEEER
BEREEEWmE - NEBREEY  MBEHFISMeRIABENEINEFTEANGENIZRAET - &
BEXHPBREEZLMAE
ERMEENABEZAFEDUZTABRR S CREFBREERINENRXZ THARZEBEALR °
THITERBRIIBAEF R FE -

SERRTTREZERB BN AHEECEBERAEBUBR - FERRKLFSKRIH A 2 T A2 E A1 FF R,
BAPAKRREREFE R_T_—_F+_A=t—-BR-_T_—F+-A=t—8B RBAXKEEBHFTE
TRIEBRITRERRMEMN A TELBHFE/TERX -

ErRERE AFHEDREMBMESE -
AEERZEZHF(TEREERFABOHENCENRITFILNTEERTIA - TA2RTA(BREY
SNES KA EAREAEEREEEUNBERMNE - ZFREBRLZEAMSAIBEEHARE @ 8

REFOHEEERURINENEIMMEHRER - BHINESHNRAERREN QN FEMRR - R-_T-—F
T-A=1t—8  EWESENITEEERRCIHRSRITETAHFHEVRREBIENEEFEAR
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39. SRMIAXAFERAFEER®)
DHERER
TERITAEESMTAZ ATFEFRER

U FEABZEE
R=R|_=—£+t-A=1—R

RATHZAPERE
EXRTEE EBEAFUEHEE
ERTSERE BWARE BWARE

(- (B=®) (B=&)
TERT TERT FET

IEEABRAFEFAEMEEW AL
A E
BN E IR AL E 13,489 = = 13,489

RZE=_—F+=-A=+—H

RATI 2 AFEAE
EXAHR BEARATHEER
RIS RE BWABIE WA

(B—4) (B=&) (B=/)
T THTT THIT

HEREAHEFARMCEEBAD

RAKRE -
BN E TR AL E 18,879 = = 18,879
PTAESRIT A = 3,680 = 3,680

18,879 3,680 = 22,559

RZFB-__F+-_A=+—8  AREHELARLFEFENERAE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

EY:

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 141, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)
Key audit matter
Assessment of inventory provision

As at 31 December 2022, the net carrying value of the
Group's inventories amounted to HK$2,193,695,000.
The assessment of inventory provision is based on the
estimated net realisable value of inventories, which
requires significant management judgements and
estimates.
including the conditions and ageing of inventories,
sales pattern and selling prices of inventories, market
demand and the Group’s future plan of usage and sale of
inventories. Management'’s provision assessment involves
a high level of judgements and estimates, and is subject
to uncertainty due to rapid changes of the notebook and
tablet computer market.

Management considers various factors,

Related disclosures about inventories are included in notes
4 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2022

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included, among others, evaluating
management’s assessment methodology based on the
Group’s circumstances, and evaluating the inputs and
assumptions applied by management in performing
the provision assessment by reviewing the ageing, the
historical usage and sales patterns, the post year-end
usage, sales and selling prices, of selected samples of
inventories.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)
Key audit matter
Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

As at 31 December 2022, the net carrying amount
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment was
HK$6,587,803,000. These property, plant and equipment
relate to the manufacture and sale of casings for notebook
computer and hand-held devices cash-generating unit.
Management assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for property, plant and equipment at the
end of each reporting year, and performs impairment
assessment when an impairment indicator is identified.
The impairment assessment is based on the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit. Management'’s
assessment process involves significant judgements and
estimates, including the estimation of expected future cash
flows and the use of other assumptions, such as terminal
growth rate and discount rate applied, which are sensitive
to expected future market or economic conditions and
the cash-generating unit’s actual performance.

Related disclosures about property, plant and equipment

are included in notes 4 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included, among others, involving
our valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the
methodologies and key assumptions used by management
in the discounted cash flow forecasts, including discount
rate and terminal growth rate. We also compared the
forecasts prepared by management with the historical
performance of the cash-generating unit and the business
development plan.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error

and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the shareholders of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Kwong Ka Yan.

.43

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

23 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

REVENUE 6 8,255,947 11,282,979
Cost of sales (7,792,204) (10,070,265)
Gross profit 463,743 1,212,714
Other income and gains 6 1,093,976 180,197
Selling and distribution expenses (170,007) (224,161)
Administrative expenses (635,639) (756,298)
Other expenses (391,986) (148,455)
Finance costs 7 (121,573) (63,802)
Share of loss of an associate (7) -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8 238,507 200,195
Income tax expense 11 (180,404) (142,646)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 58,103 57,549

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 172,149 162,396
Non-controlling interests (114,046) (104,847)
58,103 57,549

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
— Basic (HK cents) 20.4 19.2
— Diluted (HK cents) 20.4 19.1
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 58,103 57,549

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)

Other comprehensive income/(expenses) that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (1,091,711) 356,114

Other comprehensive expenses that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Equity investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income:

Change in fair value 22 (5,429) (5,460)
Income tax effect 17 - 1,246
(5,429) (4,214)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (1,097,140) 351,900

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)
FOR THE YEAR (1,039,037) 409,449

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company (738,373) 450,470
Non-controlling interests (300,664) (41,021)
(1,039,037) 409,449
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2022

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2022

HK$'000

2021
HK$'000

Property, plant and equipment 14 6,587,803 8,169,862
Right-of-use assets 15(a) 887,421 685,825
Goodwill 16 - 52,488
Deferred tax assets 17 14,210 69,806
Prepayments for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment 30,356 13831115
Investment in an associate 18 12,654 -
Equity investment designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income 22 13,489 18,879
Total non-current assets 7,545,933 9,040,175
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 19 2,193,695 2,620,078
Trade receivables 20 2,420,946 4,297,352
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 21 193,690 364,050
Derivative financial instruments 27 - 3,680
Pledged and restricted bank balances 23 102,659 74,744
Cash and cash equivalents 23 1,706,797 848,600

6,617,787 8,208,504

Non-current assets classified as held for sale 24 26,210 -
Total current assets 6,643,997 8,208,504
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and bills payables 25 822,603 1,333,045
Other payables and accruals 26 1,445,517 2,337,001
Lease liabilities 15(b) 244,513 1,416
Tax payable 51,245 68,286
Derivative financial instruments 27 1,676 216
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 28 3,048,744 3,554,599
Total current liabilities 5,614,298 7,294,563
NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,029,699 913,941
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,575,632 9,954,116
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

31 December 2022

2022 2021
HK$'000

HK$'000

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 28 994,384 1,298,055
Deferred income 29 42,625 47,329
Lease liabilities 15(b) 21,764 581
Deferred tax liabilities 17 73,572 60,450
Total non-current liabilities 1,132,345 1,406,415
Net assets 7,443,287 8,547,701
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Issued capital 30 120,001 120,001
Reserves 32 5,918,382 6,722,132
6,038,383 6,842,133
Non-controlling interests 1,404,904 1,705,568
Total equity 7,443,287 8,547,701
LY

xbp ﬁ

Cheng Li-Yu
Director
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Director
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' CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2022

Issued

Share
premium

Shares
held under
share award

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Employee

share-based  Statutory

(ompensation

feserve

Exchange

fluctuation  Retained Fair value

Other

Non-
controlling ~ Total

Nott  capital account plan reseve  fund  reserve  profits reserve  reserves  Total interests  equity
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Notes
(Note 30)  Note(c) Note (¢) Note()  (a)l  Note(c) Note(c) Note(c) Notes(b)c
At1 January 2021 120000 187919 (781,266) 5,936 459771 209381 5890040 8449 313963 6471194 1746589 8217783
Profit for the year - - - - - - 162,3% - - 16239 (104847) 57549
Other comprehensive incomellexpenses)
for the year.
Change in fair value of an equity
investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
net of tax - - - - - - - 4y - @y - @y
Bxchange differences on translation of
foreign operations - - - - - 192088 - - - 292288 63826 356,114
Total comprehensive incomel(expenses)
for the year - - - - - 29288 1623%  (4.214) - 50470 (41021) 409,449
Dividend received under
the share award plan - - 35,435 - - - - - - 343 - 343
Share-based compensation arangements 31 - - - 5,03 - - - - -5 -5
Transfer from retained profits - - - - 6094 - (60944 - - - - -
2020 final dividend - - - - - - (120,001) - - (120,001) - (120,001)
At 31 December 2021 120001 187,919 (745,831) 591 520715 501,669 5,871,491 4235 323%3 6842133 1705568 8547701
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Shares  Employee
Share  heldunder  share-hased Statutory  Exchange Non-
Issued  premium share award compensation  reserve fluctuation Retained Fair value Other controlling ~ Total
Note  capital  account plan reseve  fund  reserve  profits  reserve  reserves  Total interests  equity
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Notes
(Note 30)  Note ) Note () Note()  (al{c)  Note() Note(c) Note(c) Notes(b)c)
At 1 January 2022 120000 187919 (745831) 5191 50715 501669 5871491 4235 323963 6,842,133 1,705,568 8,547,701
Profit for the year - - - - - - 14 - - 1149 (114046) 58,103
Other comprehensive expenses
for the year:
Change in fair value of an equity
investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive
income, net of tax - - - - - - - (549 - (549 - (549
Bxchange differences on translation of
foreign operations - - - - - (905,093) - - - (905,093)  (186,618) (1,091,711)
Total comprehensive incomeflexpenses)
for the year - - - - - (905093 1149 (5429) - (138373)  (300,664) (1,039,037)
Dividend received under the share
award plan - - 28,348 - - - - - - B3 - B3
Share-based compensation arrangements 31 - - - 2,216 - - - - - -6
Transfer from retained profits - - - - 90 - (2902) - - - - -
2021 final dividend - - - - - - (%,00) - - (%,00) - (%,00)
At 31 December 2022 120001 187919 (117483) 60247 549742 (403424) 5918612  (1,194) 323963 6038383 1404904 7,443287
Notes:
(@) In accordance with the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “Mainland China”), the Company’s

subsidiaries established in the PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage of their profit after tax to the statutory reserve
fund. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations and in the subsidiaries’ articles of association, the
statutory reserve fund may be used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation issue by way of paid-up capital.

(b) The other reserves comprise capital reserve which represents profits of the Company’s subsidiaries capitalised during the prior

years and other capital reserve.

(o) These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$5,918,382,000 (2021: HK$6,722,132,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2022

HK$'000

2021
HK$'000

Profit before tax 238,507 200,195
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 7 121,573 63,802
Share of loss of an associate 18 7 -~
Interest income 6 (8,676) (10,495)
Dividend income 6 (705) -
Write-off of long outstanding trade payables 6 (827) -
Write-off of long outstanding other payables and accruals 6 (728) (9,699)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8 1,001,293 1,053,492
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 8 23,803 18,016
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, net 8 (525,446) 6,473
Impairment of goodwill 16 52,488 =
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 14 285,401 -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of trade receivables 8 1,685 (1,602)
Write-off/(write-back) of trade receivables 8 (2,523) 4,976
Provision/(reversal of provision) for inventories, net 8 108,229 (19,480)
Recognition of subsidy income 34(a) (69,429) -
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative financial
instruments, net 8 45,885 (37,488)
Equity-settled share option expenses 31(a) 2,276 5,035
1,272,813 1,273,225
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 116,871 (239,660)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 1,599,469 (215,765)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other receivables 149,301 15,613
Movement in derivative financial instruments (40,725) 34,038
Decrease in trade and bills payables (433,985) (98,015)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals (150,328) 207,844
Cash generated from operations 2,513,416 977,280
PRC income tax paid (107,957) (178,760)
PRC income tax refunded 1,604 15,759
Overseas income tax paid (7,132) (2,966)
Withholding tax paid (20,456) (38,867)
Interest received 8,676 10,495
Interest paid (132,277) (73,596)
Net cash flows from operating activities 2,255,874 709,345
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Net cash flows from operating activities 2,255,874 709,345

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment (516,032) (998,911)
Additions of right-of-use assets - (19,720)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets 34(a) 95,113 41,823
Investment in an associate (12,661) —
Increase in pledged and restricted bank balances (27,915) (36,433)
Increase in prepayments for acquisition of property, plant

and equipment (30,356) (43,315)
Dividend received 705 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities (491,146) (1,056,556)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank loans 5,287,678 1,860,608
Repayment of bank loans (6,023,909) (1,521,553)
Dividend paid (96,001) (120,001)
Dividend received under the share award plan 28,348 35,435
Principal portion of lease payments (32,257) (2,316)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (836,141) 252,173

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 928,587 (95,038)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 848,600 928,674
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (70,390) 14,964
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,706,797 848,600

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 23 1,706,797 848,600

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the consolidated
statement of cash flows 1,706,797 848,600
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Ju Teng International Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. During
the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged
in the manufacture and sale of casings for notebook computer and handheld devices. The registered address
of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Issued and Equity interest
Place of incorporation/ paid-up share/ attributable to
Company name registration and business registered capital the Company  Principal activities
Best Alliance Holding Inc. A British Virgin Islands (“BVI")/ U5$52,600,000 Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
The Republic of China (The
"ROC")
Giant Glory International Limited Samoa/ROC US$49,777,419 Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Everyday Computer Components (Suzhou) PRC US§52,500,000 100%  Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. * sale of casings
Suzhou Dazhi Communication Accessory PRC US$148,500,000 100%  Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. * sale of casings
Ju Teng (Neijiang) Communication Accessory PRC US$101,000,000 100%  Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. * sale of casings
Tri-Great International Limited Samoa/R0C US$1,000,000 Ordinary 100%  Sale of casings and

related materials

Gi Li Co,, Ltd. ROC NT$105,000,000 Ordinary 100%  Sale of casings and
related materials

Grand Develop Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100%  Provision of general
administrative and
support services

Mindforce Holdings Limited ("Mindforce”) BVIROC U5$75,101,000 Ordinary 71%  Investment holding

WIS Precision (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. * PRC 15$25,000,000 71%  Manufacture and
sale of casings
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of incorporation/

Issued and
paid-up share/

Equity interest
attributable to

31 December 2022

Company name

WIS Precision (Taizhou) Co., Ltd. *

Dynamic Apex Limited

Fullerton Ltd.

Lian-Yi Precision (Zhongshan) Inc. *

Wah Yuen Technology Holding Limited
("Wah Yuen”)

Hong Ya Technology Corp.

Compal Precision Module China Holdings Ltd.

Compal Precision Module (Jiangsu) Company
Limited™*

Compal Electronic Technology (Chongging)
Co., Ltd*

Jiang Su Inoac Juteng Polymer Co., Ltd.*

registration and business

PRC

Macau

Samoa/ROC

PRC

Mauritius/ROC

ROC

Mauritius/ROC

PRC

PRC

PRC

registered capital

US$69,800,000

MOP100,000

US§31,749,800 Ordinary

S§33,400,000

US$261,758,240 Ordinary

NT$475,577,800 Ordinary

US$236,267,926 Ordinary

US§420,000,000

15$60,000,000

US$6,000,000
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the Company

100%

59.28%

59.28%

59.28%

59.28%

59.28%

81.46%

Principal activities

Manufacture and
sale of casings

Sale of casings and
related materials

Investment holding and
sale of computer equipment
and peripherals

Manufacture and
sale of computer equipment
and peripherals
Investment holding
Manufacture and

sale of casings

Investment holding and sale of
casings and related materials

Manufacture and
sale of casings

Manufacture and
sale of casings

Manufacture and
sale of materials
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

1)
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Issued and Equity interest

Place of incorporation/ paid-up share/ attributable to
Company name registration and business registered capital the Company  Principal activities

Waujiang Dading Precision Mould Co., Ltd.* PRC US$80,000,000 100%  Manufacture and
sale of casings
Tasun (Chongging) Electronic Technology PRC 15$90,000,000 100%  Manufacture and
Co., Ltd.* sale of casings
Dongxu Juteng Electronic Material (Jurong) PRC US$1,000,000 51%  Manufacture and
Co. Ltd.* sale of materials
He Li Cheng Electronic Material (Chong Qing) PRC US§700,000 51%  Manufacture and
Co. Ltd.* sale of materials
Juteng Electronic Technology (Taizhou) Co., Ltd.*  PRC US$180,000,000 100%  Manufacture and
sale of casings
b Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law
AN

Directly held by the Company

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for derivative
financial instruments and an equity investment designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
which have been measured at fair value. Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell as further explained in note 3.3. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. When the Company has,
directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(0 the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value
of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial statements.

64

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
HKFRSs 2018-2020 accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business combination,
an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there were no business combinations during
the year, the amendments did not have any impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the availability of the practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical expedient are met.

The Group has adopted the amendment on 1 January 2022. However, the Group did not receive
any covid-19-related rent concessions and therefore the amendment did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(©

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead,
an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those items as determined
by HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments retrospectively to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there
was no sale of items produced prior to the property, plant and equipment being available for use, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous under
HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g.,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to contracts
for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous contracts were
identified. Therefore, the amendments did not have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that is applicable to the
Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group has
applied the amendment prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there was no modification or exchange
of the Group’s financial liabilities during the year, the amendment did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
and HKAS 28 (2011) its Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’ >
Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9
— Comparative Information®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)? *
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)?
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from

a Single Transaction’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

A woN -

2 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January
2023

6 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall

apply it on initial application of HKFRS 17
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon

their initial application but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
any significant impact on its financial performance and financial position.
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3.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investment in an associate is stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group‘s share of the post-
acquisition results and other comprehensive income of an associate is included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has been
a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of an associate is included as part of the Group’s investment in an associate.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

3.3

68

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts
of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part
of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and equity investment at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating
unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of the items of property,
plant and equipment are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings 20 years

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms or 5 to 10 years
Machinery 5 to 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item
is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and machinery and other items of property, plant and
equipment under construction or installation, which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of purchase, construction, installation and testing and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period of construction or installation. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sales transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset must be available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of
such assets and its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs
to sell. Property, plant and equipment classified as held for sale are not depreciated.
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Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the lease (that is the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 50 years
Properties 1 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.qg., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of office
properties and equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption
for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that are considered to be of low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted average
basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Annual Report 2022  Ju Teng International Holdings Limited 73



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

3.3

74

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
central pension schemes operated by the relevant government authorities. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees employed by the
Group's subsidiary in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme under the Labor Pension Act (the
“Act”) for its employees employed by the Group’s subsidiary in the ROC. Based on the Act, the Group's
monthly contribution to individual pension accounts of employees covered by the defined contribution plan
is at 6% of monthly salaries and wages. The funds are deposited in individual labour pension accounts at
the Bureau of Labor Insurance.

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes and a share award plan for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the operations of the Group. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer, further details of which are given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.
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Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the
terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and
any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award,
as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The
gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the
date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance,
the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the
dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person

(i) has control, or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Group;
or
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order
to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. This category includes
derivative instruments.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the

lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at
fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than
90 days past due. The Group has rebutted the 30 days past due presumption of significant increase in credit
risk based on reasonable and supportable information, including the Group’s credit risk control practices and
the historical recovery rate of contractual payments over 30 days past due. However, the Group may also
consider a significant increase in credit risk when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is less likely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 120 days past due. The
Group has rebutted the 90 days past due presumption of default based on reasonable and supportable
information, including the Group’s credit risk control practices and the historical recovery rate of financial
assets over 90 days past due. However, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial assets at amortised cost

are subject to impairment under the general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals, lease liabilities, derivative financial instrument and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the statement of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of
profit or loss.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item,
it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is released to
the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Transfer of assets

Where the Group receives non-monetary assets transferred from its customers or equivalent and the Group
has to provide ongoing access to a supply of goods or services, the related assets are recorded at the fair
value of the non-monetary assets and released to the statement of profit or loss as revenue over the expected
useful lives of the relevant assets by equal annual instalments, while a deferred income account is credited
and is released to the statement of profit or loss as revenue over the expected useful life of the relevant asset.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Other income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in
use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Further details are given in note 16 to the financial statements.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further details are given in note 14
to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast market conditions (such as global shipments of personal computers and gross domestic product) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates, forecast market conditions and ECLs
is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast economic
conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade receivables is disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the condition of inventories of the Group and makes provision against obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items which are identified as no longer suitable for sale or use. Management estimates the
net realisable value for inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review at the end of each reporting period and makes provision against
obsolete and slow-moving items. Management considers various factors, including the conditions and ageing
of inventories, sales pattern and selling prices of inventories, market demand and the Group’s future plan of
usage and sale of inventories. Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting period.

The identification of obsolete and slow-moving inventory items requires the use of judgements and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact on the carrying
values of inventories and the write-down of inventories recognised in the periods in which such estimates
have been changed. The carrying amount of inventories carried as assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022 was HK$2,193,695,000 (2021: HK$2,620,078,000), details of
which are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and has developed criteria in
making that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of the
other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Judgements (continued)

Withholding taxes

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

In estimating the withholding taxes on dividends to be distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors have made assessment based on
factors which include the dividend policy and the level of capital and working capital required for the Group’s
operations in the foreseeable future.

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of casings for notebook computer
and handheld devices. For management purposes, the Group operates in one business unit based on its casing
products, and has one reportable operating segment.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segment.

Geographical information

(i) Revenue from external customers:

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

The PRC, excluding Hong Kong 7,942,911 11,076,119
The ROC 104,580 95,023
Others 208,456 111,837
8,255,947 11,282,979

The revenue information above is based on the locations where the products are delivered to the
customers.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information (continued)

(i)  Non-current assets:

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

The PRC, excluding Hong Kong 7,065,638 8,762,564
The ROC 164,014 187,718
The Socialist Republic of Vietnam 272,034 -
Others 16,548 1,208
7,518,234 8,951,490

The non-current asset information above, excluding an equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets, is based on the locations of the assets.

Information about major customers

Revenues of approximately HK$1,933,994,000, HK$1,728,715,000, HK$1,400,030,000 and HK$1,064,670,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022 were derived from sales to four major groups of customers, the revenue
from each of which accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

Revenues of approximately HK$2,858,180,000, HK$2,783,533,000, HK$1,673,722,000 and HK$1,394,933,000
for the year ended 31 December 2021 were derived from sales to four major groups of customers, the revenue
from each of which accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue.

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of casings for notebook computer and handheld devices 8,255,947 11,282,979
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

(i)  Disaggregated revenue information

2022 IO
HK$'000 HK$'000
Geographical markets

The PRC, excluding Hong Kong 7,942,911 11,076,119
The ROC 104,580 95,023
Others 208,456 111,837
8,255,947 11,282,979

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time 8,255,947 11,282,979

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in the current reporting period that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period:
Sale of casings for notebook computer and handheld
devices 32,483 39,436

(ii) Performance obligation

Sale of casings for notebook computer and handheld devices

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and payment is generally due within
60 to 120 days from delivery.
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Other income and gains
Interest income 8,676 10,495
Subsidy income* 121,471 93,372
Compensation income 11,075 984
Dividend income 705 -
Gross rental income 26,147 26,248
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables - 1,602
Write-back of trade receivables 2,523 -
Write-off of long outstanding trade payables 827 -
Write-off of long outstanding other payables and accruals 728 9,699
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets, net* 525,446 -
Foreign exchange gains, net 394,900 -
Fair value gains on derivative financial instruments, net
— Realised gains - 34,038
— Unrealised gains - 3,450
Others 1,478 309
1,093,976 180,197
w Various government subsidies have been received for enterprises engaged in businesses in Mainland China for promoting the

manufacturing industry. For the year ended 31 December 2022, a government subsidy of approximately HK$73,463,000 for
the Group’s relocation of certain production plants in Suzhou due to the urban planning (the “Relocation”), is recognized
as subsidy income upon completion of the Relocation during the year. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these subsidies.

* Pursuant to the Relocation, the Group disposed of certain of its items of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets in Suzhou and government compensation income of approximately HK$559,223,000, net of the carrying amounts
of the items of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets surrendered by the Group, is recognised as gain on
disposal of items of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets upon completion of the Relocation during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of the Group’s finance costs is as follows:

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Interest on bank loans 131,257 73,493

Interest on lease liabilities 1,020 103
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not at fair value

through profit or loss 132,277 73,596

Less: Interest capitalised (10,704) (9,794)

121,573 63,802
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

[\ [o} (=1 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost of inventories sold* 7,792,204 10,070,265
Auditor’s remuneration 4,350 4,300
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14 1,001,293 1,053,492
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15(a) 23,803 18,016
Lease payments not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities 15(c) 3,143 3,565
Provision/(reversal of provision) for inventories, net** 108,229 (19,480)
Impairment of goodwill*** 16 52,488 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment*** 14 285,401 -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of trade
receivables***** 20 1,685 (1,602)
Write-off/(write-back) of trade receivables***** (2,523) 4,976
Employee benefit expense (excluding directors’
remuneration — note 9):
Wages and salaries, bonuses, allowances and
welfare 2,315,635 3,388,184
Equity-settled share option expenses 1,979 4,324
Pension scheme contributions
(defined contribution scheme)****=** 163,193 149,023
2,480,807 3,541,531

Gross rental income on owner-occupied properties
and machinery (26,147) (26,248)
Less: Direct operating expenses arising from rental-
earning owner-occupied properties and
machinery 4,813 4,943

Net rental income (21,334) (21,305)

Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, plant

and equipment and right-of-use assets, net* (525,446) 6,473
Fair value gains on derivative financial instruments,

net****

— Realised losses/(gains) 40,725 (34,038)

— Unrealised losses/(gains) 5,160 (3,450)
Foreign exchange losses/(gains), net** (394,900) 132,823
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

i Cost of inventories sold includes HK$3,412,262,000 (2021: HK$4,338,578,000) relating to depreciation, employee benefit
expense, and provision/(reversal of provision) for inventories, net, which are also included in the total amounts disclosed
above for each of these types of expenses.

P Included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
W Included in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

**%*  Fajr value gains are included in “Other income and gains” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Fair value losses are included in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

*xx%x \Write-off of trade receivables and impairment of trade receivables are included in “Other expenses” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Write-back of trade receivables and reversal of impairment of trade receivables
are included in “Other income and gains” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

*x*%xx*There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

# Gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, net, is included in “Other income
and gains” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment is included in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

#it Foreign exchange losses included in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Foreign
exchange gains included in “Other income and gains ” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2022 PAOPA

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fees 781 594
Other emoluments:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6,208 9,170

Performance related bonuses 350 863

Share-based payments 297 711

Pension scheme contributions 35 35

6,890 10,779

7,671 11,373

Certain directors were granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair
values of such options, which have been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
were determined as at the date of grant and the amounts included in the financial statements for the current
and prior years are included in the above directors’ and chief executive's remuneration disclosures.
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (continued)
(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees and share-based payment expenses paid to independent non-executive directors during the
year were as follows:

2022
Share-based Total
Name of director Fees payments remuneration
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mr. Cherng Chia-Jiun 198 19 217
Mr. Tsai Wen-Yu 198 19 217
Mr. Yip Wai Ming 198 19 217
Mr. Yuen Chi Ho* 14 - 14
608 57 665
# On 6 December 2022, Mr. Yuen Chi Ho was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company.
2021
Share-based Total
Name of director Fees payments remuneration
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mr. Cherng Chia-Jiun 198 45 243
Mr. Tsai Wen-Yu 198 45 243
Mr. Yip Wai Ming 198 45 243
594 135 729

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors during the year
(2021: Nil).
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and the chief executive

Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related Share-based scheme Total

Name of director Fees in kind bonuses payments contributions remuneration
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2022

Executive directors:

Mr. Cheng Li-Yu* - 821 68 - - 889
Mr. Huang Kuo-Kuang - 909 - 64 17 990
Mr. Chiu Hui-Chin* 157 778 - 22 - 957
Mr. Lin Feng-Chieh - 1,880 282 90 - 2,252
Mr. Tsui Yung Kwok - 1,820 - 64 18 1,902

Non-executive director:
Mr. Cheng Li-Yen** 16 - - - - 16

173 6,208 350 240 35 7,006

2021

Executive directors:

Mr. Cheng Li-Yu - 991 71 - = 1,062
Mr. Huang Kuo-Kuang - 886 = 153 17 1,056
Mr. Chiu Hui-Chin* - 3,731 311 56 = 4,098
Mr. Lin Feng-Chieh - 1,866 466 214 - 2,546
Mr. Tsui Yung Kwok - 1,696 15 153 18 1,882
= 9,170 863 576 35 10,644

* On 16 March 2022, Mr. Chiu Hui-Chin ceased to be the chief executive officer of the Company and his annual

salary is adjusted from HK$3,731,000 to HK$198,000; and Mr. Cheng Li-Yu was appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company.

*x On 16 March 2022, Mr. Cheng Li-Yen was appointed as the non-executive director of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year.

Annual Report 2022 Ju Teng International Holdings Limited 95



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

10.

96

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included two (2021: two) directors, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining
three (2021: three) highest paid employees who are neither directors nor chief executive of the Company
are as follows:

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,070 2,114
Performance related bonuses 1,761 3,530
Equity-settled share option expenses 405 1,005
Pension scheme contributions 48 49
4,284 6,698

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

2022 2021
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2 =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 — 2

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 -

Share options were granted under the share option scheme of the Company to the non-director and non-
chief executive, highest paid employees in respect of their services to the Group, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amounts included in the financial statements for the current and prior years are included in the
above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees' remuneration disclosures.
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31 December 2022

11. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group did not have any assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year (2021: Nil). Taxes on assessable profits have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Provision for the year:
Current — The PRC, excluding Hong Kong
Charge for the year 103,600 155,043
Underprovision in prior years 18,756 9,719
Current — Overseas
Charge for the year 13,465 11,635
Overprovision in prior years (20,373) (33,904)
Deferred tax (note 17) 64,956 153
Total tax charge for the year 180,404 142,646
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11. INCOME TAX (continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates, ranging
from 12% to 25% (2021: 12% to 25%), for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at the effective tax rates is as follows:

98

2022
The PRC,
excluding
Hong
Hong Kong and
Kong Macau Macau Overseas Total
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit/(loss) before tax (16,688) 7,869 292,714 (45,388) 238,507
Tax at the statutory tax rate (2,754) 945 73,179 (9,245) 62,125
Preferential tax rates - - (21,262) - (21,262)
Effect of withholding tax at 10%
on the distributed profit of a PRC
subsidiary - - 3,916 - 3,916
Effect of withholding tax at 12% on
the distributable profit of a Macau
subsidiary - 9,790 - - 9,790
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on
capital gain tax - - 16,540 - 16,540
Adjustments in respect of current tax
of previous periods - - 18,756 (20,373) (1,617)
Income not subject to tax (104) - (38,580) (7,261) (45,945)
Expenses not deductible for tax 2,858 - 112,985 29,933 145,776
Tax losses not recognised - - 50,251 - 50,251
Tax losses utilised from prior periods - - (38,285) - (38,285)
Temporary differences not recognised - - - 38 38
Others - - (923) - (923)
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group's
effective rate - 10,735 176,577 (6,908) 180,404
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NOTES TO FINANC.IAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

INCOME TAX (continued)
2021

The PRC,
excluding
Hong

Kong and
Hong Kong Macau Macau Overseas Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Profit/(loss) before tax (24,486) 52,543 167,065 5,073 200,195
Tax at the statutory tax rate (4,040) 6,305 41,766 1,015 45,046
Preferential tax rates - - (11,406) - (11,406)

Effect of withholding tax at 10%
on the distributed profit of a PRC

subsidiary - - 38,867 - 38,867
Adjustments in respect of current tax

of previous periods - - 9,719 (33,904) (24,185)
Income not subject to tax (299) - (38,534) (363) (39,196)
Expenses not deductible for tax 4,339 - 33,570 1,693 39,602
Tax losses not recognised - - 83,850 - 83,850
Temporary differences not recognised - - - 9,290 9,290
Others - - 778 - 778

Tax charge/(credit) at the Group's
effective rate - 6,305 158,610 (22,269) 142,646

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law being effective on 1 January 2008, the income tax is unified
at 25% for all enterprises in Mainland China.

According to Announcement No. 23 [2020] of the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation Administration and
the National Development and Reform Commission issued in April 2020, enterprises set up in the western
region in the PRC with major businesses falling within the Catalogue of Encouraged Industries in the Western
Region are entitled to a reduced corporate income tax (“CIT") rate of 15%.

Juteng (Neijiang) Communication Accessory Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary of the Company in the Sichuan
province, and Tasun (Chongqing) Electronic Technology Co., Ltd. and Compal Electronic Technology (Chongging)
Co., Ltd., which are subsidiaries of the Company in the Chongging city, were entitled to enjoy the 15% CIT
preferential rate as their major businesses fall within the Catalogue of Encouraged Industries in the Western
Region.

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% of the estimated assessable profit for a subsidiary in Macau.
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12.

13.
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DIVIDENDS

2022 2021

HK$’'000 HK$'000

Proposed final — HK5 cents (2021: HK8 cents)
per ordinary share 60,000 96,001

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on the profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company of HK$172,149,000 (2021: HK$162,396,000) and the weighted average
number of 845,662,671 (2021: 845,662,671) ordinary shares in issue excluding shares held under the share
award plan during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amount
presented in respect of a dilution as the impact of share options outstanding had no dilutive effect on the
basic earnings per share amount presented.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the calculation of diluted earnings per share amount was based on the
profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$162,396,000. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation was 845,662,671 ordinary shares in issue excluding shares
held under the share award plan during that year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and
the weighted average number of 3,968,729 ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration
on the deemed exercise of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2022

At 1 January 2022:

Land and
buildings
HK$'000

improvements

Furniture,

fixtures

Leasehold and office
equipment

HK$'000

Motor Construction
vehicles in progress
HK$'000 HK$'000

Machinery
HK$'000

Total

HK$'000 HK$'000

Cost 4,981,612 9,957 10,129,750 1,715,443 14,083 806,501 17,657,346
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (2,152,384) (3,686) (5,849,136)  (1,472,923) (9,355) - (9,487,484)

Net carrying amount 2,829,228 6,271 4,280,614 242,520 4,728 806,501 8,169,862
At 1 January 2022, net of

accumulated depreciation

and impairment 2,829,228 6,271 4,280,614 242,520 4,728 806,501 8,169,862
Additions 4,486 21 58,228 23,370 770 483,176 570,051
Transfers 586,258 - 241,148 36,250 351 (864,007) -
Disposals/write-off (114,188) - (27,561) (15,663) (94) (52,168)  (209,674)
Transfer to non-current assets

held for sales (note 24) - - (26,202) (8) - - (26,210)
Impairment (note 8) - - (283,561) (1,555) (285) - (285,401)
Depreciation provided during

the year (note 8) (221,841) (787) (565,349) (212,265) (1,051) - (1,001,293)
Exchange realignment (232,470) (492) (294,970) (50,793) (381) (50,426)  (629,532)
At 31 December 2022, net of

accumulated depreciation

and impairment 2,851,473 5013 3,382,347 21,856 4,038 323,076 6,587,803
At 31 December 2022:

Cost 4,757,061 9214 9,402,296 1,487,771 13,311 323,076 15,992,729

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment (1,905,588) (4,201) (6,019,949)  (1,465,915) (9,273) - (9,404,926)
Net carrying amount 2,851,473 5013 3,382,347 21,856 4,038 323,076 6,587,803
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

31 December 2021

At 1 January 2021:

Land and
buildings
HK$'000

Leasehold
improvements
HK$'000

Machinery
HK$'000

Furniture,
fixtures
and office
equipment
HK$'000

Motor
vehicles
HK$'000

Construction
in progress
HK$'000

Total
HK$'000

Cost 4,832,762 8,020 9,522,906 1,596,102 12,903 534,507 16,507,200
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (1,881,853) (2,911)  (5,490,036)  (1,265,846) (8,253) - (8,648,899)

Net carrying amount 2,950,909 5,109 4,032,870 330,256 4,650 534,507 7,858,301
At 1 January 2021, net of

accumulated depreciation

and impairment 2,950,909 5,109 4,032,870 330,256 4,650 534,507 7,858,301
Additions 8,373 1,474 95,428 48,084 1,112 1,037,306 1,191,777
Transfers 5,544 = 678,301 93,316 146 (777,307) =
Disposals/write-off (125) = (37,442) (3,782) (94) (6,853) (48,296)
Depreciation provided during

the year (note 8) (215,447) (625) (590,724) (245,479) (1,217) - (1,053,492
Exchange realignment 79,974 313 102,181 20,125 131 18,848 221,572
At 31 December 2021, net of

accumulated depreciation

and impairment 2,829,228 6,271 4,280,614 242,520 4,728 806,501 8,169,862
At 31 December 2021:

Cost 4,981,612 9,957 10,129,750 1,715,443 14,083 806,501 17,657,346

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment (2,152,384) (3,686)  (5,849,136)  (1,472,923) (9,355) - (9,487,484)
Net carrying amount 2,829,228 6,271 4,280,614 242,520 4,728 806,501 8,169,862

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s land and buildings with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$20,223,000 (2021: HK$22,227,000) situated in the ROC were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 28).

As at 31 December 2022, the application of property ownership certificates for certain buildings with a net
book value of HK$41,280,000 (2021: HK$47,227,000) was still in progress. In the opinion of the directors,
the risk of the Group for not being able to obtain the legal titles for the relevant buildings is low and the
Group will continue to pursue and discuss with the Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC for the final
settlement and complete the ownership registration of the buildings.
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15.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, after the Relocation (note 6), certain items of spare machinery and
furniture and fixtures of the Group’s factories in Suzhou with an aggregate carrying value of HK$71,099,000
were identified by management and included in a plan to sell. These assets were used in the manufacture and
sale of casings for notebook computer and handheld devices. The recoverable amounts of these assets have
been determined on their fair value less cost of disposal based on purchase prices offered by independent
third parties and an impairment loss of HK$44,889,000 was recognised as “Other expenses” in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2022. The net carrying values of these assets of HK$26,210,000 were
transferred from property, plant and equipment to non-current assets held for sale as at 31 December 2022.

In view of the downturn in operating results and decline in gross profit margin of the manufacture and sale
of casings for notebook computer and handheld devices cash-generating unit (the “CGU") for the year,
management performed an impairment assessment on the recoverable amount of the CGU, together with
the goodwill allocated to the CGU, at 31 December 2022. The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on a five-year financial
forecast approved by management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 13%.
Based on management’s assessment, impairment losses of HK$240,512,000 (2021: Nil) was recognised to write
down the carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment of the CGU to their aggregate recoverable
amounts of HK$6,587,803,000 as at 31 December 2022. The goodwill of HK$52,488,000 allocated to the
CGU was fully impaired as at 31 December 2022 (note 16).

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for certain of its properties, machinery, motor vehicles and office equipment
used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners
with lease periods of 50 years. Leases of properties generally have lease terms between 3 months and 60
months (2021: between 3 months and 60 months), while motor vehicles generally have lease terms of 3 years.
Machinery and office equipment generally have lease terms of 12 months or less and/or are individually of
low value, and therefore these lease payments are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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31 December 2022

15. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the movements during the year are as
follows:

Leasehold Motor
land  Properties vehicles Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
As at 1 January 2021 661,310 3,195 61 664,566
Additions 19,720 630 323 20,673
Depreciation charge (Note 8) (15,709) (2,196) 111) (18,016)
Exchange realignment 18,592 10 - 18,602
As at 31 December 2021 and 1 January
2022 683,913 1,639 273 685,825
Additions 278,396 22,011 - 300,407
Disposals (16,914) - - (16,914)
Depreciation charge (Note 8) (18,137) (5,565) (101) (23,803)
Exchange realignment (58,038) (36) (20) (58,094)
As at 31 December 2022 869,220 18,049 152 887,421
(b) Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the year are as follows:
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 1,997 3,335
New leases 300,407 953
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 1,020 103
Payments (33,277) (2,419)
Exchange realignment (3.870) 25
At 31 December 266,277 1,997
Analysed into:
Current portion 244,513 1,416
Non-current portion 21,764 581
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31 December 2022

15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Lease liabilities (continued)

Analysed into:

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$’000

Lease liabilities repayable:
Within one year 244,513 1,416
In the second year 5,223 242
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 8,574 339
Beyond five years 7,967 -
266,277 1,997

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows:

2022 AOVA!

HK$'000 HK$'000

Interest on lease liabilities 1,020 103

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 23,803 18,016

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in

administrative expenses) 3,105 3,455
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in

administrative expenses) 38 110

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 27,966 21,684

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 34(c) to the financial statements.
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31 December 2022

15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases part of its factory and machinery under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$26,147,000
(2021: HK$26,248,000), details of which are included in note 6 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the Group in future periods under
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

2022 2021

HK$000 HK$’000

Within one year 22,751 25,657
After one year but within two years 21,670 23,460
After two years but within three years 19,242 23,160
After three years but within four years 19,773 20,846
After four years but within five years 19,745 21,462
After five years 73,119 100,800
176,300 215,385

16. GOODWILL

HK$°000

Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 52,488
Cost at 1 January 2022 52,488
Impairment during the year (Note 8) (52,488)

Net carrying amount at 31 December 2022 -

At 31 December 2022:

Cost 52,488
Accumulated impairment (52,488)

Net carrying amount -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwiill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the manufacture and sale of casings for
notebook computer and handheld devices cash-generating unit for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the manufacture and sale of casings for notebook computer and handheld devices
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on a five-year financial forecast approved by management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 13% (2021: 16%) and cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
a growth rate of 2% (2021: 2%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the manufacture and sale of casings for notebook
computer and handheld devices cash-generating unit as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.
The following describes each key assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Forecasted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value assigned to the forecasted gross margins is
the average gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the forecast year, increased for expected
efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Based on management’s assessment, an impairment loss of HK$52,488,000 (2021: Nil) was recognised to
profit or loss to fully impair the goodwill as at 31 December 2022.
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17.
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DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax assets

Losses available
for offsetting

against future
taxable profits
HK$'000

Gross deferred tax assets at 1

Government
subsidies
HK$'000

Impairment of
property, plant
and equipment

HK$'000

Lease liabilities
HK$'000

Total
HK$'000

January 2021 59,887 8,204 = - 68,091
Deferred tax charged to the

statement of profit or loss during

the year (note 11) - (153) - - (153)
Exchange realignment 1,638 230 - - 1,868
Gross deferred tax assets at 31

December 2021 and 1 January

2022 61,525 8,281 - - 69,806
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to

the statement of profit or loss

during the year (note 11) (58,567) (148) 3,413 3,606 (51,696)
Exchange realignment (2,958) (724) (106) (112) (3,900)
Gross deferred tax assets at 31

December 2022 - 7,409 3,307 3,494 14,210

Apart from tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$246,100,000 that the Group has recognised deferred
tax assets as at 31 December 2021, the Group had tax losses arising in Mainland China of approximately
HK$866,050,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$959,527,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the subsidiaries in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have

not been recognised in respect of these losses as it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
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 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022

17. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value
adjustments arising
from revaluation of

Fair value an equity investment

adjustments designated at fair
arising from value through other
acquisition of comprehensive  Withholding Right-of-use
subsidiaries income tax assets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Gross deferred tax liabilities at

1 January 2021 450 1,246 60,000 - 61,696
Deferred tax credited to equity
during the year - (1,246) - - (1,246)

Gross deferred tax liabilities at

31 December 2021 and

1 January 2022 450 - 60,000 - 60,450
Deferred tax charged to the

statement of profit or loss

during the year (note 11) - - 9,790 3,470 13,260
Exchange realignment - - - (138) (138)

Gross deferred tax liabilities at
31 December 2022 450 - 69,790 3,332 73,572

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China
for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately HK$3,272,208,000 (2021:
HK$2,871,970,000) as at 31 December 2022. In the opinion of the directors, the Company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and, accordingly, the Group has taken into consideration,
among others, the probability the temporary difference being reversed in the foreseeable future, and recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable in the foreseeable future on distribution of unremitted earnings
by the Company’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.
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31 December 2022

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

2022 2021

HK$’'000 HK$'000

Share of net assets 12,654 -

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

Percentage of
ownership interest

Particulars of Place of incorporation/ attributable to the
Company name issued shares held registration and business Group  Principal activities

Leading Profit Holding Limited Ordinary shares Seychelles/The ROC 49%  Investment holding

The Group’s shareholding in an associate comprises equity shares held through a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company.

The following table illustrates the financial information of the Group’s associate that is not individually material:

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Share of the associate’s loss for the year (7) -
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s investment in the

associate 12,654 -

19. INVENTORIES

2022 2021

HK$°000 HK$'000

Production materials 224,847 354,997
Work in progress 677,584 850,942
Finished goods 1,081,499 1,128,015
Moulds and consumable tools 209,765 286,124
2,193,695 2,620,078
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 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade receivables 2,426,112 4,300,833
Impairment (5,166) (3,481)
2,420,946 4,297,352

The general credit terms of the Group range from 60 days to 120 days. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

An ageing analysis of the Group'’s trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$ 000

Within 3 months 1,295,835 2,780,363
4 to 6 months 1,064,992 1,487,320
7 to 12 months 60,119 29,669
2,420,946 4,297,352

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

At beginning of year 3,481 5,083
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) (note 8) 1,685 (1,602)
At end of year 5,166 3,481

As at 31 December 2022, the increase in loss allowance was due to the increase in trade receivables which
were past due for 7 to 12 months.

As at 31 December 2021, the decrease in loss allowance was due to the decrease in trade receivables which
were past due for 4 to 6 months.
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31 December 2022

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more than
one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a
provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2022

Past due

1to 3 4to6 7 to 12

Current months months months

Expected credit loss rate 0.05% 0.02% 6.23% 44.92% 0.21%
Gross carrying amount

(HK$'000) 1,832,492 565,770 21,642 6,208 2,426,112
ECLs (HK$'000) 916 113 1,348 2,789 5,166

As at 31 December 2021

Past due

1to3 4 to 6 7 to 12
Current months months months

Expected credit loss rate 0.06% 0.02% 7.19% 0% 0.08%
Gross carrying amount

(HK$'000) 3,486,466 796,583 17,105 679 4,300,833
ECLs (HK$'000) 2,092 159 1,230 - 3,481
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Prepayments 59,345 60,606
Deposits and other receivables 134,345 303,444
193,690 364,050

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent history
of default and past due amounts. The ECLs are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions, as appropriate. As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the ECLs
were assessed to be minimal.

EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
Equity investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Overseas listed equity investment, at fair value
Paragon Technologies Co., Ltd. 13,489 18,879

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
as the Group considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the gross loss in respect of the Group’s equity investment designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to
HK$5,429,000 (2021: HK$5,460,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received a dividend in the amounts of HK$705,000
(2021: Nil) from Paragon Technologies Co., Ltd.

In the opinion of the directors, the equity investment designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income is not expected to be realised within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,

the investment is classified as a non-current asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The market value of the Group’s listed equity investment at the date of approval of these financial statements
was approximately HK$15,772,000.
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23.

24,
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

2022 2021

HK$’'000 HK$'000

Cash and bank balances, including time deposits with original

maturity less than 3 months 1,809,456 923,344
Less: Pledged and restricted bank balances (102,659) (74,744)
Cash and cash equivalents 1,706,797 848,600

Renminbi (“"RMB") is not a freely convertible currency in Mainland China and the remittance of funds out of
Mainland China is subject to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC government. Companies incorporated
in the ROC are subject to certain controls in the remittance of funds out of the ROC up to a certain limit for
each calendar year. At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents which were subject
to exchange and/or remittance restrictions in Mainland China or the ROC amounted to approximately
HK$397,824,000 (2021: HK$282,548,000).

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

As at 31 December 2022, certain items of machinery and furniture and fixtures at an aggregate carrying
value of HK$26,210,000 were transferred from property, plant and equipment (note 14) to non-current assets
held for sale. As at 31 December 2022, negotiations for the sale of these assets were in progress and in the
opinion of the directors, the sale is highly probable to be completed within 12 months from the end of the
reporting period.
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26.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms of 60 to 120 days.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the invoice date and issuance date, respectively, is as follows:

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Within 3 months 532,780 1,093,965
4 to 6 months 254,025 215,514
7 to 12 months 29,030 14,361
Over 1 year 6,768 9,205
822,603 1,333,045

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Deferred income (note 29) 858 898
Contract liabilities* 53,851 32,483
Other payables* 756,212 695,853
Compensation income received in advance - 726,350
Accruals 634,596 881,417
1,445,517 2,337,001

*

Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance from customers for the sale of goods.
The contract liabilities as at 1 January 2021 amounted to HK$39,436,000. The increase (2021: decrease) in contract
liabilities in 2022 was mainly due to an increase (2021: decrease) in advances received from customers in relation to the

sale of goods at the end of the year.

*# Other payables are non-interest-bearing.
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27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2022 2021

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Forward currency contracts - 1,676 3,680 216

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts to reduce its exposure to foreign currency
exchange rate fluctuations. These forward currency contracts are not designated for hedge purposes and are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of non-hedging currency derivatives,
net, amounting to HK$45,885,000 (2021: HK$37,488,000) were debited (2021: credited) to the statement
of profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2022.

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

Effective Effective

interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000

Current
Syndicated bank loans 6.10 2023 274,842 1.32 2022 137,245
Other bank loans 0.56-7.51 2023 2,773,902 0.38-2.72 2022 3,417,354
3,048,744 3,554,599
Non-current
Syndicated bank loans 1.32 2024-2025 961,947 1.32 2023-2025 1,235,203
Other bank loans 1.32-1.68 2024-2027 32,437 1.13-1.26 2023-2027 62,852
994,384 1,298,055
4,043,128 4,852,654
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29.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Repayable:
Within one year 3,048,744 3,554,599
In the second year 441,052 313,204
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 553,332 984,061
Beyond five years - 790
4,043,128 4,852,654
Notes:
(@ Certain of the Group’s bank loans were secured by:
(i) the pledge of certain of the Group’s land and buildings situated in the ROC, which had a net carrying value at

the end of the reporting period of HK$20,223,000 (2021: HK$22,227,000); and

(ii) corporate guarantees executed by the Company to the extent of HK$2,931,266,000 (2021: HK$3,190,318,000)
as at the end of the reporting period.

(b) The Group’s bank loans with carrying amounts of HK$3,728,254,000 (2021: HK$4,430,816,000), HK$20,744,000 (2021:
HK$27,057,000) and HK$294,130,000 (2021: HK$394,781,000) are denominated in United States dollars (“US$"), New
Taiwan dollars (“NT$"”) and RMB, respectively.

DEFERRED INCOME

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Deferred income related to the government subsidies

for acquisition of assets (i) 43,483 48,227
Current portion (note 26) (858) (898)
Non-current portion 42,625 47,329

Note:
(i) Deferred income represented government subsidies relating to acquisition of assets received by certain of the Group’s

subsidiaries in Mainland China.
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30. SHARE CAPITAL

31.
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Shares
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:
1,200,008,445 (2021: 1,200,008,445) shares of HK$0.1 each 120,001 120,001

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

(a)

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, persons that provide research, development or other technological support to the Group,
the Group's shareholders and the advisers or consultants of the Group and participants who have
contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares
at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from the date of offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer
of the share options.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

31. EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(a)

Share option scheme (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the daily quotation sheet on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of the offer of the share options; and (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

During the year, no share options were granted or cancelled by the Company under the Scheme and
no share options were expired.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year:

2022 2021

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options

HKS$ per share HK$ per share
At 1 January 1.48 33,512,000 1.48 35,630,000
Forfeited 1.48 (1,536,000) 1.48 (2,118,000)
At 31 December 1.48 31,976,000 1.48 33,512,000
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31. EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(a) Share option scheme (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

2022

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
HK$ per share

184,400 1.48 7-11-2018 to 31-8-2024

534,400 1.48 7-11-2019 to 31-8-2024

538,400 1.48 7-11-2020 to 31-8-2024
15,360,400 1.48 7-11-2021 to 31-8-2024
15,358,400 1.48 7-11-2022 to 31-8-2024
31,976,000

2021

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
HK$ per share

184,400 1.48 7-11-2018 to 31-8-2024
534,400 1.48 7-11-2019 to 31-8-2024
538,400 1.48 7-11-2020 to 31-8-2024
16,128,400 1.48 7-11-2021 to 31-8-2024
16,126,400 1.48 7-11-2022 to 31-8-2024
33,512,000
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The Group recognised a share option expense of HK$2,276,000 (2021: HK$5,035,000) during the year
ended 31 December 2022 in respect of share options granted/replaced in the prior years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 31,976,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, representing approximately 2.7% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 31,976,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$3,198,000 and share premium of HK$44,127,000 (before issue expenses).
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32.

33.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(b) Share award plan

The board of directors approved the adoption of the new share award plan (the “Share Award Plan")
with effect from 19 May 2017. The purpose of the Share Award Plan is to (i) recognise and reward the
contribution of certain eligible participants to the growth and development of the Group through an
award of shares and to give incentives thereto in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group; and (i) attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group.
The vesting period of the awarded shares is determined by the board of directors.

As at 31 December 2022, a total of 354,345,774 (2021: 354,345,774) shares were held by the Bank
of Communications Trustee Limited, the trustee under the Share Award Plan.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the prior and current years are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 56 and 57 of the financial statements.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests are set out below:

2022 2021

Percentage of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:

Wah Yuen and its subsidiaries (“Wah Yuen Group”) 40.72% 40.72%
Mindforce and its subsidiaries (“Mindforce Group") 29% 29%
2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

Loss for the year allocated to non-controlling interests:
Wah Yuen Group (29,297) (81,837)
Mindforce Group (44,958) (33,844)

Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests at the
reporting date:
Wah Yuen Group 1,289,833 1,486,263
Mindforce Group 61,775 120,810
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PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of the above partly-owned subsidiaries.
The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

Wah Yuen Mindforce
Group Group
HK$’'000 HK$'000

2022
Revenue 2,785,604 827,851
Total expenses (2,857,552) (982,879)
Loss for the year (71,948) (155,028)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year (490,056) (202,932)
Current assets 2,949,123 514,759
Non-current assets 2,530,650 654,880
Current liabilities (2,290,913) (799,668)
Non-current liabilities (31,505) (156,424)
Net cash flows from operating activities 600,215 19,263
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities 4,280 (10,928)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (362,597) 43,150
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 241,898 51,485

Mindforce

Group

HK$'000

2021

Revenue 3,724,365 1,403,490
Total expenses (3,925,339) (1,520,196)
Loss for the year (200,974) (116,706)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year (61,617) (102,359)
Current assets 3,728,105 887,242
Non-current assets 2,544,293 779,271
Current liabilities (2,606,793) (1,093,667)
Non-current liabilities (25,857) (156,368)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities (34,723) 329,185
Net cash flows used in investing activities (352,266) (20,397)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities 351,715 (307,061)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (35,274) 1,727
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NOTES TO FINANC.IAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

(i) During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$300,407,000 (2021: HK$953,000) and HK$300,407,000 (2021: HK$953,000), respectively,
in respect of lease arrangements for its leasehold land and properties (2021: properties and
motor vehicles).

(i) During the year, the Group recognized compensation income received in prior years of
HK$726,350,000, which was included in other payables and accruals as at 31 December 2021, as
subsidy income of HK$69,429,000 for relocation and compensation income of HK$656,921,000
for surrendering of certain items of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets upon
completion of the Relocation (note 6).

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
2022

Lease Interest-bearing

liabilities bank borrowings

HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 January 2022 1,997 4,852,654
Changes from financing cash flows (32,257) (736,231)
New leases 300,407 -
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 1,020 -
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows (1,020) -
Foreign exchange movement (3,870) (73,295)
At 31 December 2022 266,277 4,043,128

2021

Lease Interest-bearing

liabilities  bank borrowings

HK$'000 HK$’000

At 1 January 2021 3,335 4,492,647
Changes from financing cash flows (2,316) 339,055
New leases 953 -
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 103 -
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows (103) -
Foreign exchange movement 25 20,952
At 31 December 2021 1,997 4,852,654
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
() Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash flows is as follows:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

Within operating activities 4,163 3,668
Within financing activities 32,257 2,316
36,420 5,984

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

36. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments as at the end of the reporting period:

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Contracted, but not provided for:

Buildings 11,242 236,872
Machinery and office equipment 82,162 220,588
Leasehold land - 337,061
Total capital commitments 93,404 794,521
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group had the following transactions with related parties during the year:

2022 2021

HK$°000 HK$'000

Lease payments paid to:

Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen (i) 146 26
Mr. Cheng Yung-Kang (i) 60 26
RERMDBRAF (“KE") (iii) 308 148
Ms. Lin Meij Li (iv) 63 -

Depreciation of right-of-use assets:

Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen (i) - 121
Mr. Cheng Yung-Kang (ii) - 35
A (iiif) - 159
Ms. Lin Mei-Li (iv) - 63

Interest expenses on the lease liabilities:

Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen (i) - 2
Mr. Cheng Yung-Kang (i) - 1
AL (iii) - B
Ms. Lin Mei-Li (iv) - 1
Notes:
(i) Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen is the daughter of Mr. Cheng Li-Yu, a director of the Company. The rentals were determined

at rates mutually agreed between the relevant parties. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group only
entered into a short-term lease agreement with Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen. As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021, there were no right-of-use assets and lease liabilities recognised.

(ii) Mr. Cheng Yung-Kang is the son of Mr. Cheng Li-Yu, a director of the Company. The rentals were determined at
rates mutually agreed between the relevant parties. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group only
entered into a short-term lease agreement with Ms. Cheng Yung Kang. As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021, there were no right-of-use assets and lease liabilities recognised.

(iii) Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen and Mr. Cheng Yung-Kang are the directors of &JE. Ms. Lin Mei-Li, the spouse of Mr.
Cheng Li-Yu, a director of the Company, Ms. Cheng Shao-Wen and Mr. Cheng Yung-Kang are the shareholders of
R, The rentals were determined at rates mutually agreed between the relevant parties. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group only entered into a short-term lease agreement with KJE. As at 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2021, there were no right-of-use assets and lease liabilities recognised.

(iv) Ms. Lin Mei-Li is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Li-Yu, a director of the Company. The rentals were determined at rates
mutually agreed between the relevant parties. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group only entered
into a short-term lease agreement with Ms. Lin Mei-Li. As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, there
were no right-of-use assets and lease liabilities recognised.

The above related party transactions also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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31 December 2022

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group (excluding directors’
remuneration):

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$’000

Short term employee benefits 9,136 12,068
Employee share-based compensation expenses 784 1,764
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 9,920 13,832

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial statements.

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

2022

Financial assets

Financial
assets at
amortised
cost
HK$°000

Equity investment designated at fair value through

Equity
investment
designated at
fair value

through other
comprehensive
income
HK$°000

Total
HK$000

other comprehensive income - 13,489 13,489
Trade receivables 2,420,946 - 2,420,946
Financial assets included in prepayments, deposits

and other receivables 91,381 - 91,381
Pledged and restricted bank balances 102,659 - 102,659
Cash and cash equivalents 1,706,797 - 1,706,797

4,321,783 13,489 4,335,272
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38.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

2022 (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial
liability at
fair value

through profit
or loss - held
for trading
HK$'000

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
HK$'000

31 December 2022

Total
HK$’000

Trade and bills payables - 822,603 822,603

Financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals - 790,854 790,854
Derivative financial instrument 1,676 - 1,676
Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 4,043,128 4,043,128
Lease liabilities - 266,277 266,277
1,676 5,922,862 5,924,538

2021

Financial assets

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other

Financial
assets at
amortised
cost
HK$’000

Financial

asset at fair
value through
profit or loss —

mandatorily
designated as
such
HK$'000

Equity
investment
designated at
fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
HK$'000

Total
HK$'000

comprehensive income - - 18,879 18,879
Trade receivables 4,297,352 - - 4,297,352
Financial assets included in

prepayments, deposits and

other receivables 118,847 - - 118,847
Derivative financial instruments - 3,680 - 3,680
Pledged and restricted bank

balances 74,744 - - 74,744
Cash and cash equivalents 848,600 - - 848,600

5,339,543 3,680 18,879 5,362,102
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38.

39.

128

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

2021 (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial
liability at fair
value through
profit or loss Financial
— held for liabilities at
trading  amortised cost Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Trade and bills payables - 1,333,045 1,333,045
Financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals - 711,385 711,385
Derivative financial instrument 216 - 216
Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 4,852,654 4,852,654
Lease liabilities - 1,997 1,997
216 6,899,081 6,899,297

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts

2022
HK$'000

Financial assets

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Overseas listed equity investment,

2021
HK$'000

Fair values

2022
HK$°000

2021
HK$'000

at fair value 13,489 18,879 13,489 18,879
Derivative financial instruments 3,680 - 3,680
13,489 22,559 13,489 22,559

Financial liability
Derivative financial instrument 1,676 216 1,676 216

Ju Teng International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2022



39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, pledged and restricted bank balances, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
bills payables, financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals and the current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the chief financial officer is responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance department reports
directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance
risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 were assessed to
be insignificant.

The fair value of the listed equity investment was based on a quoted market price.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. Derivative financial instruments, including forward currency contracts,
are measured using valuation techniques similar to forward pricing using present value calculations. The
models incorporate various market observable inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign
exchange spot and forward rates. The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the same as their
fair values. As at 31 December 2022, the mark-to-market value of the derivative asset position was net of a
credit valuation adjustment attributable to derivative counterparty default risk.
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31 December 2022

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value
As at 31 December 2022

Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Overseas listed equity investment 13,489 -

13,489

As at 31 December 2021

Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (R (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$’000

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income:

Overseas listed equity investment 18,879 - - 18,879
Derivative financial instruments - 3,680 - 3,680
18,879 3,680 - 22,559

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2022.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2021: Nil).
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liability measured at fair value
As at 31 December 2022

Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Derivative financial instruments - 1,676 - 1,676

As at 31 December 2021

Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

Derivative financial instruments - 216 - 216

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2021: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings,
pledged and restricted bank balances, and cash and short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables, other receivables, trade and bills payables and other payables and accruals,
which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including principally forward currency contracts. The purpose
is to manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 3.3 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt
obligations denominated in US$ with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rate of the
United States dollar, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax.

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in basis points before tax
HK$'000
2022
United States dollar 50 (18,641)
United States dollar (50) 18,641
2021
United States dollar 50 (22,154)
United States dollar (50) 22,154

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in foreign currency exchange rates relates primarily to
certain trade receivables, trade and bills payables, certain cash and cash equivalents, and interest-bearing
bank borrowings in currencies other than the functional currencies of the Group’s operating subsidiaries. The
Group uses derivative financial instruments to reduce its foreign currency risk, but the transactions do not
qualify for hedge accounting.

Since most of the Group’s revenue is denominated in US$ and most of the Group’s expenses are denominated
in RMB, the appreciation of RMB has negative effects on the Group’s profitability.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Renminbi exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax (arising from Renminbi denominated financial instruments).

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in exchange in profit
rate before tax
% HK$’'000
2022
If US$ strengthens against RMB 13.48 334,779
If US$ weakens against RMB (13.48) (334,779)
2021
If US$ strengthens against RMB 3.08 100,182
If US$ weakens against RMB (3.08) (100,182)
Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade receivables included in the consolidated statement of financial position represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s trade receivables. The Group performs
ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions and requires no collateral from its customers.

The Group has a significant concentration of credit risk in relation to trade receivables as the trade receivables
due from the five largest customers accounted for 82% (2021: 86%) of the Group’s trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period. The loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables was based upon a review
of the expected collectability of all trade receivables.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2022

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs

Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Trade receivables* - 2,426,112 2,426,112
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

— Normal** 91,381 - 91,381
Pledged and restricted bank balances
— Not yet past due 102,659 - 102,659
Cash and cash equivalents
— Not yet past due 1,706,797 - 1,706,797
1,900,837 2,426,112 4,326,949
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs

Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

Trade receivables* - 4,300,833 4,300,833
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

— Normal** 118,847 — 118,847
Pledged and restricted bank balances
— Not yet past due 74,744 - 74,744
Cash and cash equivalents
— Not yet past due 848,600 - 848,600
1,042,191 4,300,833 5,343,024
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the provision

matrix is disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.
** The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered to be

“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers

the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash
flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank loans and lease liabilities. In addition, banking facilities have been put in place for contingency purposes.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

2022
On demand or 2to5 Over

within 1 year years 5 years Total

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

Trade and bills payables 822,603 - - 822,603

Lease liabilities 245,472 15,546 13,785 274,803
Financial liabilities included in other

payables and accruals 790,854 - - 790,854

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 3,093,878 1,014,198 - 4,108,076

4,952,807 1,029,744 13,785 5,996,336

2021
On demand or 2to5 Over

within 1 year years 5 years Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade and bills payables 1,333,045 - - 1,333,045

Lease liabilities 1,447 597 - 2,044
Financial liabilities included in other

payables and accruals 711,385 - - 711,385

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 3,581,408 1,332,955 793 4,915,156

5,627,285 1,333,552 793 6,961,630
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels
of equity indices and the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
an individual equity investment classified as an equity investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (note 22) as at 31 December 2022. The Group’s listed investment is listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange (the “TSEC”) and valued at the quoted market price at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity index for the following stock exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading
day in the year to the end of the reporting periods, and its respective highest and lowest points during the
year were as follows:

31 December High/low 31 December High/low

2022 2022 2021 2021

ROC — TSEC Weighted Index 14,138 18,620/12,629 18,219 18,291/14,720

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the fair value of the equity
investment, with all other variables held constant and before any impact on deferred tax, based on its carrying
amount at the end of the reporting period. For the purpose of this analysis, for the equity investment designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income, the impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

Carrying Increase/
amount of (decrease) Increase/

equity in equity (decrease)
investment price in equity*
HK$’'000 % HK$'000

2022
Investment listed in:
ROC - Equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income 13,489 33.33 4,496
13,489 (33.33) (4,496)

2021
Investment listed in:
ROC - Equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income 18,879 32.76 6,185
18,879 (32.76) (6,185)

* Excluding retained profits

Annual Report 2022 Ju Teng International Holdings Limited 137



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

40.

138

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate benchmark reform

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings denominated in United
States dollars. The interest rates of certain of these instruments are based on the London Interbank Offered
Rate (“LIBOR") with a tenor of three months or six months, which will cease to be published after 30 June
2023. Replacement of the benchmark rates of these instruments from LIBOR to a risk-free rate (“RFR") has yet
to commence but it is expected that there will be renegotiations of terms in the future. During the transition,
the Group is exposed to the following risks:

o Parties to the contract may not reach agreement in a timely manner as any changes to the contractual
terms require the agreement of all parties to the contract

o Additional time may be needed for the parties to the contract to reach agreement as they may
renegotiate terms which are not part of the interest rate benchmark reform (e.g., changing the credit
spread of the bank borrowings due to changes in credit risk of the Group)

o The existing fallback clause included in the instruments may not be adequate to facilitate a transition
to a suitable RFR

The Group will continue to monitor the development of the reform and take proactive measures for a smooth
transition.

The information about financial instruments based on an interbank offered rate that has yet to transition to
an alternative benchmark rate is as follows:

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-derivative financial liabilities — carrying amount:
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
— United States dollar LIBOR 317,464 781,559
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as the total bank borrowings divided
by the total assets. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Total bank borrowings 4,043,128 4,852,654
Total non-current assets 7,545,933 9,040,175
Total current assets 6,643,997 8,208,504
Total assets 14,189,930 17,248,679
Gearing ratio 28% 28%
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the reporting period is

as follows:
2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$’000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries 1,080,944 1,078,893
CURRENT ASSETS
Due from subsidiaries 5,017,797 4,370,340
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 288 427
Restricted bank balances 68,894 40,498
Cash and cash equivalents 14,053 2,705
Total current assets 5,101,032 4,413,970
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Due to a subsidiary 1,926,635 1,810,882
Other payables and accruals 5,291 5,673
Total current liabilities 1,931,926 1,816,555
NET CURRENT ASSETS 3,169,106 2,597,415
Net assets 4,250,050 3,676,308
EQUITY
Issued capital 120,001 120,001
Reserves (note) 4,130,049 3,556,307
Total equity 4,250,050 3,676,308
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Shares
held under Employee
Share share share-based
premium award compensation Other Retained
account plan reserve reserves profits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2021 187,919 (781,266) 52,936 316,058 3,868,860 3,644,507
Total comprehensive expenses for the year - - - - (8,669) (8,669)
Dividend received under the share award plan - 35,435 - - - 35,435
Share-based compensation arrangements - - 5,035 - - 5,035
2020 final dividend - - - - (120,001) (120,001)
At 31 December 2021
and 1 January 2022 187,919 (745,831) 57,971 316,058 3,740,190 3,556,307
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 639,119 639,119
Dividend received under the share award plan - 28,348 - - - 28,348
Share-based compensation arrangements - - 2,276 - - 2,276
2021 final dividend - - - - (96,001) (96,001)
As 31 December 2022 187,919 (717,483) 60,247 316,058 4,283,308 4,130,049

The employee share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy of share-based payments in note 3.3 to the financial statements. The amount will
be (i) transferred to the share premium account when the related options are exercised; (ii) transferred to retained profits should
the related options expire; or (iii) credited to the statement of profit or loss should the related options be forfeited.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORT PERIOD

On 10 November 2022, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party,
pursuant to which, the independent third party agreed to acquire from the Group the entire equity interest
in Ju Teng Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary for a cash consideration
of approximately HK$27,000,000. The disposal was completed on 29 January 2023 and resulted in a gain on
disposal of approximately HK$42,700,000.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2023.
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